Village of Egg Harbor
Utility Committee Meeting Minutes
October 15", 2019 at 11:00 a.m.
Paul J. Bertschinger Community Center
7860 STH 42, Egg Harbor, W1 54209

1. Call to order and approval of the agenda
Heller called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. Those in attendance were John Heller, Mack
Bonk, Tom Prohl, Bert Sawyer, Ryan Heise, and Megan Vandermause. Absent were TC
Johnson and Tom Strong. Also in attendance was Angela Lensch.

Heller moved to approve the agenda, second by Prohl, motion carried.

2. Approve September 17", 2019 meeting minutes
Heller moved to approve the September 17", 2019 meeting minutes, second by Bonk, motion
carried.

3. Open Session (Limited to Ten Minutes)

e Vandermause provided an update on the McMahon proposal the committee reviewed
Iast'f1 month which was approved by the Village Board at their meeting on October
147,

e Heller asked that the Village attorneys review the contract before it is returned to
McMahon.

e Heller stated that at the last meeting TC Johnson asked what the situation was with
the Alpine, and stated that he is not sure if the Alpine is up to date on their payments
but they asked for relief from the interest.

Heller stated that he was planning on taking this request to the Village Board.

e The committee agreed that the request should be taken to the Village Board and the
Alpine should be paid in full by the end of the year.

o Heller stated that the committee has had some preliminary discussion on solar and
wind power at the wastewater treatment facility.

e Heller said that he would like to pursue or at least investigate solar for the wastewater
treatment plant.

e Bonk asked if the solar power would be used for lighting and controls, and Heller
stated that the solar could be used to offset the total energy consumption of the plant.

e Prohl stated that he is a proponent of solar but he thinks there should be an analysis
done to determine the amount of sunlight available in order to verify that solar
installation would be an asset.

e Lensch stated that there are a lot of other communities that participate in the Green
Tier program that have implemented municipal solar.

e Heise stated that the committee has to determine if it makes sense for McMahon to
look at this as an addendum to their engineering for the phase | improvement project.

e Prohl stated that to him this makes sense because then everything is compiled into
one project.



4. Notice of hearing of appeal of REU determination for 7792 Hwy 42 per section §
50.02(C)(4) of the Village of Egg Harbor Municipal Code

Robert Mueller the owner of 7792 Hwy 42 submitted a letter to the utility committee
which was included in the agenda packet.

Heller stated that because two of the commercial units on this property have been
unoccupied since the beginning of 2019 he does not see a reason to increase the
property’s REU charge.

Heller stated that Mueller also states in his letter that there is an offer to purchase the
property which is set to close on October 31%,

Prohl asked if there any proposed plan for how the property might be used in the
future and Sawyer stated that there is not but the building could be used as one big
store or two small stores.

The committee agreed that the REU determination should stay at 2 REUS.

5. Notice of hearing of appeal of REU determination for 7653 Hwy 42 per section 8§
50.0(C)(4) of the Village of Egg Harbor Municipal Code

Lensch reviewed a letter that she shared with the Utility Committee.

The committee discussed that the 7653 Hwy 42 property is an owner occupied
business.

The committee asked if the classification of the owner occupied business has changed
and Sawyer stated that this classification has not changed.

Sawyer explained that under the REU calculation the committee needs to determine
what classification the property falls within.

Sawyer stated that 7653 Hwy 42 was classified under an owner occupied business.
Sawyer said that the REU calculation for the property was never changed after the
use of the building had changed from residential to commercial.

Heller stated that the challenge the committee has is setting a precedent.

Bonk stated that he does sees Lensch’s point, but he agrees with Heller.

Lensch stated that she is here today to see if there is an exception for the REU
determination.

Lensch stated that she is a bit different than other owner occupied businesses because
she is not within the main business corridor.

Heller stated that he is concerned with the precedent that the committee might set if
they make an exception in this case.

The committee reviewed that all other owner occupied businesses are classified at 1.5
REUSs.

The committee agreed that this REU classification should remain at 1.5 REU.

Bonk stated that REU reevaluation is not complete yet so there could be some
changes.

Lensch stated that she is a one employee business outside of the corridor with a small
square footage.

Lensch stated that she does not feel that the committee would be setting a precedent
because her situation is very different from other owner occupied businesses.

Heller stated that he does not see the fact that the business is located outside of the
corridor as means for an exception because the property is on the sewer system.
Lensch stated that she thinks this is a huge factor because she does not see as many
customers as she would if she were located within the main corridor.



Heller stated that this could be something that the committee could look at as far as if
a business is located within or without of the corridor.

Lensch stated that she doesn’t think that there would need to be changes made to the
classification.

Bonk stated that he would definitely think this would require some changes made.
Lensch stated that the fact that the business is out of the corridor is not the only factor
she is presenting she is also presenting the fact that it is a single employee business
and has a small square footage.

Lensch stated that she feels like these factors are items that are reasonable for the
committee’s consideration in making an exception.

Heller stated that he is concerned with the committee setting a precedent.

Heller stated that he would request that the committee keep the business classified as
an owner occupied business.

Lensch asked if it is possible to table this hearing until there is a full committee
present. The committee had a quorum present so tabling the hearing was not needed.
The committee stated that if Lensch is unhappy with the committee’s decision she
can file an appeal with the Village Board.

The committee agreed to keep the REU classification at 1.5 REUSs.

Lensch thanked the committee for the opportunity to provide feedback on the REU
determination.

6. In consideration of the hearings for 7792 Hwy 42 and 7653 Hwy 42 final decision on
REU determination

Prohl moved to deny the request of 7653 Hwy 42 and update the REU determination for
the property at 1.5 REUs and to approve the request of 7792 42 and leave the current
REU determination of 2 REU, second by Bonk, motion carried.

7. Commercial REU discussion for vacation rental properties and restaurants

Heller stated that with regard to restaurants the committee has a survey totaling the
numbers of indoor and outdoor seating for each.

Heller stated that he for one would like to see outdoor seating included in the
determination for REUSs.

Heller stated that Main Street Market has outdoor seating and he thinks that their
outdoor seating should be added to the list.

Sawyer stated that the only thing to note on this would be that the outdoor seating is
not relevant for the grocery store calculation.

Sawyer stated that grocery stores have straight calculations and seats are not a factor
in the calculation.

Sawyer stated that Main Street Market and Greens N Grains are similar in that there
is a retail store and also has food prep.

Sawyer stated that he had asked Tom Kispert if there could be a more in depth
formula created for grocery stores, and Kispert told him that really the REU can be
calculated in anyway the committee would like.

Sawyer said that he is not sure how to determine the REUs for these types of
businesses.

Heller stated that he thinks grocery store calculations should be a topic of discussion.



e Sawyer stated that he knows that Tom Kispert has some insight on how the
calculation for Main Street Market was done.

e Heller stated that he is suggesting that the committee move ahead with including
outdoor seating in the REU calculations for restaurants.

e Heller stated that he added all of the outdoor seating in the Village and he thinks the
calculation of outdoor seating as presented would result in 10 additional REUs in the
system.

e Heller stated that he also recommends that the vacation rental properties be charged
as presented with 1 REU for two bedrooms units with a kitchen and .33 REUs for
each additional bedroom.

Heller moved that the committee incorporate outdoor seating in the REU
calculation for restaurant and bar categories as every four outdoor seats count as
one indoor seat and that vacation rental properties be charged 1 REU for unites
with a kitchen and two bedrooms and .33 REUs for each additional bedroom,
second by Prohl, motion carried.

e Sawyer asked how the Village will determine the number of bedrooms and asked
if there will need to be some inspections.

e Prohl asked if the Door County Tourism Zone has a listing of the properties.

e Heller stated that the Village will need to determine which vacation rentals are on
the system.

e Heise stated that Kim Roberts spends a lot time researching to see what vacation
rentals come on the grid.

e Heise said that the list that the Door County Tourism Zone does keep quite a
good record of the rental properties.

e Vandermause reviewed the information that is collected for Village business
licenses and the number of units is notated not the number of bedrooms in each
unit.

e Bonk said that the Door County Tourism Zone issues a report monthly and the
Village trusts this report.

e Bonk asked if any of this can be based on dollars and Prohl stated that he doesn’t
think that this can be calculated this way.

e Prohl stated that he would be willing to look through the list of rental units to
help determine the REU calculations for each unit.

e Sawyer asked that all of the rental properties be researched and then all the
changes can be reviewed at the same time.

e Heller stated that he thinks that most rental units are two bedroom units so most
of these units will not change.

e Bonk said that each rental unit could also be looked at as an owner occupied
business and Sawyer stated that the classification is not the same.

8. Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager report
e The haulers are up about 200,000 gallons.
e The flow for the month was up about 500,000 gallons.
e Sawyer stated that one of the downfalls with having so much flow is that we had to
order a third load of chemicals.



Sawyer stated this is strictly a budgetary concern.

Prohl stated that he assumes that the chemicals are used as needed, and Sawyer stated
that the chemical pumps are based on flow.

Sawyer stated that after he and Larry attended a meeting last week in Green Bay he
believes that the Village of Egg Harbor has been really luckily to make repairs to the
system over the past few years because there are other communities that are really
having issues due to all of the extra water.

Sawyer stated that Kewaunee and Sturgeon Bay have been having a lot of issues with
all of the increase rain fall.

Sawyer stated that the Village did have some situations were basements flooded in
the Village and the lift stations were also flooded but the home owners were very
willing to work with the Village on this issue.

9. Beach expansion project

Heise stated that the beach expansion project was a priority ever since he started
working with the Village in 2015.

Heise stated that there were a number of public engagement meetings held to develop
the scope of the project.

Heise stated that the Village has a coastal management grant for the project.

Heise stated that a few weeks before the project started he had a contractor meeting
with the contractor for the project and asked them to be careful around the sewer
pipe.

Heise said that a few days later Sawyer came into his office and stated that he had
spoken with Tom Kispert and they were very concerned with the amount of
insulation that was going to be removed from the top of the sewer pipe.

Heise said that this concern was then shared with the engineering firm for the beach
project and the engineers took the position that they were unaware of the utility in the
area.

Heise reviewed some aspects of the contract with the engineering firm.

Heise said that what the Village is left with is a little bit of a problem.

Heise reviewed the revised beach plans with the sewer accommodations as presented
by Smith Group JJR, the engineering firm for the beach project, with the committee.
There are some spots of the utility pipe that are only four feet from the top of the
ground. The sewer pipe is also sitting in water.

Heise stated that the Village looked at two options which included increasing the
amount of insulation over the sewer pipe, but this option had a number of concerns.
The second option was to reroute the sewer main around the project and this could be
a benefit because it is less risky and would be able to be used in the moving of the lift
station.

Heise stated that the Village Board reviewed both options at their meeting last night
and decided to move forward with rerouting the sewer pipe.

Rerouting the pipe will cost less than providing additional insulation over the pipe.
Heise stated that the contractor is looking for subcontractors to do the sewer reroute.
Heise said that winter is coming so the Village needs to work quickly in getting the
project complete.

Heise said that the village tried to a hydrovac utility located last Friday and it
couldn’t be done because of the amount of ground water in the area.



e Heise stated that because of the proximity of the project he would like for both pieces
of the project be attended to in concert.

e Heise stated that the Village is also pulling in McMahon Engineering because they
have a lot of institutional knowledge and we have a long going contract with
McMahon.

e Prohl stated that he agrees and especially agrees on pulling in McMahon to approve
of the design for the reroute.

e Bonk asked if the thought is to combine the sewer reroute and the beach into one
project.

e Bonk asked if Smith Group JJR would be finishing both projects, and Heise stated
that the Village would like McMahon Engineering to take over on the engineering.

e Sawyer stated that the Village would like the same contractor to complete the project.

e Prohl stated that he likes having everything in one place and he thinks it is important
to have Tom Kispert involved based on his knowledge of the Village’s system.

e Bonk asked Sawyer if the elevations of everything will work, and Sawyer stated that
based on his review it looks like everything will work but he is not an engineer so he
cannot guarantee anything.

e Sawyer stated that he would be more concerned with making sure that the sewer line
can be used if the lift station is moved.

e Prohl stated that this will be very expensive, but he thinks that this is very necessary.

10. Next Meeting Time and Date
The next meeting is November 19", 2019 starting at 11:00 a.m.

11. Adjourn
Heller moved to adjourn at 12:17 p.m., second by Prohl, motion carried.



